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COUNTY OF ALAMEDA

QUESTIONS & ANSWERS
to

RFP No. 901420

for

Juvenile Justice Crime Prevention Act (JJCPA) – Community Supervision Program 
Summary of Q&A Submitted

Networking/Bidders Conferences held on December 5, 2017 and December 6, 2017
	This County of Alameda, General Services Agency (GSA), Questions & Answers (Q&A) document has been electronically issued to potential bidders via e-mail.  E-mail addresses used are those in the County’s Small Local Emerging Business (SLEB) Vendor Database or from other sources.  If you have registered or are certified as a SLEB, please ensure that the complete and accurate e-mail address is noted and kept updated in the SLEB Vendor Database.  This Q&A document will also be posted on the GSA Contracting Opportunities website located at http://www.acgov.org/gsa/purchasing/bid_content/ContractOpportunities.jsp.


Alameda County is committed to reducing environmental impacts across our entire supply chain. 

If printing this document, please print only what you need, print double-sided, and use recycled-content paper.

Responses to Questions from the Bidders Conferences and Written Questions.
Q1) After the addendum is issued, if there are a number of significant changes, will there be another open questions period?
A1) Yes.  Please see the revised Calendar of Events in Addendum No. 4; a second written questions period will be from February 15, 2018 – February 27, 2018 (questions must be submitted via email no later than 5:00 p.m. on February 27, 2018).  

Written questions should be emailed directly to:

Lovell Laurente, Procurement & Contracts Specialist

lovell.laurente@acgov.org
If necessary, questions submitted will be addressed in a subsequent Q&A document and/or addendum. 

In addition, a third Networking/Bidders Conference has been added on February 27, 2018 at 9:00 a.m., to be held at GSA-Procurement, Room 1107 (11th Floor), 1401 Lakeside Drive, Oakland, CA  94612.
Q2) Has this RFP been issued previously? If yes, can the County provide a list of the current service providers, their programs, and how the services were procured?
A2) This is the first RFP issued for these services.  Currently, only parenting services are provided through Project Reconnect; those services were procured through an Informal Request for Quote.
Q3) Is there a page limitation for the Budget Detail and Narrative in the bid response? 
A3) There is no page limitation.  However, the County does request that Bidders be concise in their bid proposals. 

Q4) The County’s website (http://acgov.org/auditor/sleb/overview.htm) states the following: 

The following entities are exempt from the Small and Emerging Local Business (SLEB) requirements as described above and are not required to subcontract with a SLEB: 
· non-profit community based organizations (CBO) that are providing services on behalf of the County directly to County clients/residents; 
· non-profit churches or non-profit religious organizations (NPO); 
· public schools; and universities; and
· government agencies.
Does this mean these types of agencies do not need be a certified SLEB to get the preference points or subcontract with a SLEB to be eligible to apply?

A4) Agencies that are exempt from the SLEB requirement as stated on the website do not need to be a certified SLEB or subcontract to a certified SLEB in order to submit an eligible bid response.  

SLEB preference points, however, are only applied to those bidders that meet the appropriate requirements.  For example, a prime bidder that is not a certified SLEB but meets the exemption requirements would not be eligible for the 5% certified preference points; while the 5% local preference points would only be applied if that same bidder is able to satisfy the local business provision (which can also be found on the same County website).
Q5) If a bidder does subcontract (at least 20% of the total contract) with a certified SLEB, would that mean the bidder would earn the 10% bid preference?  Or does the prime bidder need to be a certified SLEB to qualify for the 10% bid preference?
A5) The prime bidder itself has to be an Alameda County certified SLEB in order to qualify for the 10% bid preference points.
Q6) If a bidder were to submit a collaborative response with multiple organizations who are operating separate programs under different service categories, would the lead bidder need to have two years of experience providing all of the services in the RFP?  Or could the subcontractor who is operating the program meet the two years of experience criteria?
A6) Please see the revised BIDDER MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS found in Addendum No. 4. 

Q7) Are non-SLEB prime bidders required to subcontractor with a certified SLEB for a particular percentage in order to be eligible to bid? 
A7) All prime bidders must meet the SLEB provision in order to be eligible to bid.  Requirements for the SLEB provision can be found on the County’s website at:  
http://acgov.org/auditor/sleb/overview.htm
Q8) If a non-SLEB prime bidder is a 501(c)3 and therefore exempt from having to meet the SLEB subcontracting requirement,  would the prime bidder still receive preference points? 

A8) No.  The prime bidder itself has to be an Alameda County certified SLEB in order to qualify for the 10% bid preference points.
Q9) At the Bidders Conferences, both on the sign-in sheets and during introductions, vendors indicated whether they intend to bid as prime or as a subcontractor.  If a vendor changes its mind from what was indicated on the sign-in sheets or what was said during introductions, is there any penalty or consequence?
A9) No; there is no penalty or consequence.   The indication by vendors on the sign-in sheet and/or introductions is just for the purposes to help bidders find potential partners (whether it be collaborating, SLEB subcontracting, etc.).  Bidders are allowed to bid as a prime or as a subcontractor regardless of what is indicated on the sign-in sheets or during vendor introductions.
Q10) If a bidder prepares a response with multiple agencies providing separate services and services categories, could some of those programs potentially be funded if they are ranked high enough or would the whole application be funded?
A10) The County has revised its Budget Form (or Bid Form).  Please see Addendum No. 4 for revised specifications.

The County does not guarantee any minimum or maximum number of awards or awarded dollars per service category per service area.  In addition, the County reserves its right to decline to award contracts, or any part thereof, under this RFP for any reason.  Bid responses do not have to be funded in whole.     

Q11) The referral process, if given the chance to apply as a collaborative, seems like the County would be referring clients to the prime, and then the prime agency would submit the referral to the subcontractor operating that program. This could create confusion and disconnection.  Can the County please clarify the referral process?
A11) The County will make referrals directly to the contracted prime.  The County would like Bidders to explain, in their bid response, how they will ensure there is no confusion or disconnect when the prime has to refer clients to their subcontractors and/or partnering agencies.  In addition, Bidders should explain what processes and systems they have in place to track and report on referrals as the youth moves through the program(s).

Q12) If a bidder were to bid on gender responsive, does the bidder have to serve the entire South County or can the bidder focus on specific areas?  Are County perimeters broken down specifically in the RFP?
A12) Please see Addendum No. 4 for revised specifications, including REVISED Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet and Budget Form. 

Bidder(s) will now specify which service category(ies) per service area(s) they intend to bid on.  For any service area bid on, the Bidder must service the area in its entirety.  
Q13) Are there going to be multiple contractors servicing a specific service area, or only one? 
A13) The County does not guarantee any minimum or maximum number of awards or awarded dollars, either by service category or service area.  However, In addition to the highest ranked bidder in each service category per service area, the County may assign additional vendors (in a service category per service area)—based on ranking—to cover the needs and population of a service area.
Please see Addendum No. 4 for revised specifications.
Q14) Page 6 of the RFP, Section C (BIDDER MINIMUM QUALIFICATION), Item 1, states: 
Bidder shall be regularly and continuously engaged, for at least two years, in the business of providing community outreach and youth engagement services for each category for which it is bidding. 
Is the budget created for each area a bidder is responding to going to have to be broken down into years or just total budget without having to divide year one from year two?
A14) The County is only requesting services for one year.  Additional renewal years are optional.  Please see the RFP, Section A (INTENT):

The County intends to award a one-year contract [with (4) one year options to renew] to the bidder(s) selected as the most responsible bidder(s) whose response conforms to the RFP and meets the County’s requirements.
Also, as noted on page 12 of the REVISED Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet, Item 6 (Budget Detail and Narrative):  “Bidders shall use a budget template of their own choice.”  
Furthermore, as noted on page 13 of the REVISED Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet, Item 7, bidders are to provide an Implementation Plan and Schedule for each service category per service area being bid on that is “in conjunction with the Description of Proposed Program and Services and Budget Detail and Narrative.”  

Between the Description of Proposed Program and Services, the Budget Detail and Narrative, and Implementation Plan and Schedule, the County should be given a clear and comprehensive understanding of the program and services to be provided, including how and when funds will be allocated.

Q15) Page 7 of the RFP, Section D (GENERAL REQUIREMENTS), Item 1, states:
Bidder(s) shall not service client(s) for the same service under another existing contract agreement with other Alameda County Agencies at the same time. 

Can the County please clarify?
A15) The County is requiring that the contractor(s) not double-bill for the exact same service provided.  For example, if an assessment is done on a youth that costs $100 and that youth is being serviced under a contract with the Probation Department and another contract with Behavioral Health Care Services, the County does not expect the contractor to invoice the $100 to both Probation and Behavioral Health.  
Q16) Page 7 of the RFP, Section D (GENERAL REQUIREMENTS), Item 1, states:
Bidder(s) shall not service client(s) for the same service under another existing contract agreement with other Alameda County Agencies at the same time.

If the awarded contractor has contracts with other County Agencies and receive reimbursements from Medi-Cal, can a bidder leverage these funds?
A16) Contractors are encouraged to leverage outside funds.  In fact, Bidders should note their ability to leverage additional funds as part of their bid response.  However, if a contractor provides a service to a youth that is invoiced to and wholly paid for by Medi-Cal, the County does not expect to be invoices for that exact same service provided.
Q17) Regarding Section B (SCOPE), the first paragraph on page 6 of the RFP states:
The target population for this program will primarily be youth assigned to Community Supervision, but may also include justice involved youth at the County’s discretion.
Can the County clarify the target population and what is meant by youth?  Will it just be youth under 18 or over 18 as well?
A17) Youth is defined as youth on Juvenile Probation, and some can be as old as 19.  They cannot, however, be on Adult Probation.   

Q18) Page 10 of RFP, Section F (SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS), Item b.(1), states:
The Contractor shall meet with the youth and family in person at least twice a month, with a period of at least 10 business days between each contact 

Can the County please clarify?
A18) This requirement means that if a Contractor only meet with the youth and family in person twice a month, then there must be at least 10 business days between each meeting.  

What the County wants to avoid is a Contractor that meets in person twice a month, but both those meetings are in the first week of the month—which means there is no contract for the remainder of the month.  

So if a Contractor is meeting in person more than twice a month, at least two of the dates have to be at least 10 business days apart.  
Q19) If a provider is bidding in more than one service area, would this require a separate bid proposal? 
No.  

Please see Addendum No. 4 for revised specifications, including REVISED Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet and Budget Form.
Q20) Page 22 of the RFP, Section J (EVALUATION CRITERIA / SELECTION COMMITTEE), seventh paragraph, states: 
Each of the Evaluation Criteria below will be used in ranking and determining the quality of bidders’ proposals.  Proposals will be evaluated according to each Evaluation Criteria, and scored on the zero to five-point scale outlined below.  The scores for all Evaluation Criteria will then be added, according to their assigned weight (below), to arrive at a weighted score for each proposal.  A proposal with a high weighted total will be deemed of higher quality than a proposal with a lesser-weighted total.  The final maximum score for any project is 550 points, including the possible 50 points for local and small, local and emerging, or local preference points (maximum 10% of final score).

Can the County please clarify what the arithmetic model might be?  What does the County mean by “a proposal with a higher weighted total will have a greater value than a proposal with a lower weighted total”? Is this an additional total to the weighted aspect?
A20) Pages 23-26 of the RFP, Section J (EVALUATION CRITERIA / SELECTION COMMITTEE), contain the table of “Evaluation Criteria and their respective weights.”  The County Selection Committee (i.e., the bid evaluators) will review and score each of the evaluation criteria on a scale of zero to five (which is then averaged amongst all the evaluators).  This averages score is then multiplied by the “respective weight” of each criterion, resulting in a “weighted score.”  The weighted score for each criterion is then added up “to arrive at a weighted score for each proposal.”

For example, Item G (References) is weighted at 5 points.  If, for a particular proposal, the average score for “References” by the CSC is 4.2, then the corresponding weighted score is 21 points.  This repeats itself for each evaluation criteria.  The weighted score for each criteria is added up to arrive at the weighted score for the proposal.

A proposal with a high weighted total will be deemed of higher quality than a proposal with a lesser-weighted total.  
Q21) How will the spacing of contact expectation impact group services for youth? For example, if youth attend weekly group sessions?
A21) That only applies to page 10 of Academic Education Support Services, that spec was not listed under group settings. That was specifically geared towards individual education services. There is a short window before the review so we want to make sure kids get off on the right foot and become academically sound.
Q22) Does the County expect that if a Bidder bids on a specific County (i.e., either North County or South County), that the Bidder must serve the entire population in that region rather than a section of that region? 
A22) Please see Addendum No. 4 for revised specifications, including REVISED Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet and Budget Form.
Bidders will now indicated which service category(ies) per service area(s) they intend to bid on as part of the REVISED Budget Form.  Bidders will be expected to service the entire service area(s) indicated on the REVISED Budget Form.
Q23) What proof in writing does the County require for collaborating organizations?  For example, if a bidder is applying as the lead, what kind of documentation should be collected from our collaborators? 
A23) If a bidder is collaborating with other organizations, the County would like the lead (or prime) bidder to provide Memoranda of Understanding or Letters of Commitment from collaborating partners.
Q24) Regarding page 12 of REVISED Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet, Item 6 (Budget Detail and Narrative), what budget line items are allowable or not allowable?
A24) As noted in the above-referenced section, “Bidders shall use a budget template of their own choice; however, all cost attributed to the project that will paid for under the contract MUST be listed and described in the Budget Detail and Narrative.”  The Budget Detail and Narrative will be evaluated, in part, on how well and applicable costs are identified and attributed.  

Q25) Page 5 of the Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet (BUDGET FORM) states in capital red font and yellow highlight:
BECAUSE THE COUNTY CANNOT GUARANTEE THE NUMBER OF YOUTH TO BE SERVIED IN EACH CATEGORY, THE BIDDER’S TOTAL PROGRAM BUDGET MAY NOT ACTUALLY BE PAID OUT IN FULL.  BIDDER MUST PROVIDE A PROGRAM AND BUDGET DETAIL THAT WILL SCALE TO THE NUMBER OF YOUTH SERVED (WHETHER ONLY ONE YOUTH IS SERVED OR 200 YOUTH ARE SERVED) AND STILL ALLOW THE BIDDER’S ORGANIZATION AND ITS PROGRAM TO BE SUSTAINABLE.
Can the County give bidders samples or guidelines on how to create a Budget that will “scale to the number of youth served?”  For example, should bidders pro-rate the total project cost per youth served?  Or show a budget range from one youth served to maximum youth served?
A25) The County is not asking for a cost per youth.  However, because each organization’s programs and services may differ, and because scaling will present different challenges for each organization, the County is looking for the Bidders to use their expertise in explaining to the County how they can provide services that will scale.  

Ideally, the County is interested in contracting with Bidders with sustainable programs independent of County funds.  However, the County suggests providing a Budget Detail and Narrative that includes, at minimum, the following:

(1) Fixed Costs (not to exceed 25% of the cost billable to the County)

(a) Fixed Costs shall include Indirect Costs (not to exceed 10% of the total budget), as well as any requests for advanced funding to start, implement, or supplement its program.

(2) Program Costs (minimum 75% of the cost billable to the County)

(3) Matching Funds and/or Additional Funding Sources

Fixed Costs will not need to scale with the number of youth served.  These will costs will be paid to Contractors on a pro-rated, monthly basis.  Program Costs, however, should be variable costs that will scale to the number of youth served (e.g., Case Managers), and Bidders should define and explain what benchmarks need to be reached in order for Program Costs to increase.
Please see Addendum No. 4 for revised specifications, including REVISED Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet and Budget Form.
Q26) Regarding the Budget Detail and Narrative found on pages 12-13 of REVISED Exhibit A – Bid Response Packet, Item 6(b), the second bullet point states:
The estimated number of hours for each individual, the number of youth served by each individual, corresponding hourly rates per individual, and extended costs.
What is meant by “extended cost”?  Does it include indirect cost (necessary for the successful implementation of the program)? If yes, are there any limitations (e.g., 10% of total program budget, etc.)?
A26) The extended cost in this sentence refers to the hours assigned to each individual multiplied by the hourly rate of that individual.  
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